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The Sauer Castle is located near the crest of the bluffs that overlook the
Kaw river valley. It is a large, irregularly shaped, two and one-half story brick
building with a four story tower. The house was built in the Italian Villa style.
Originally it stood on a sixty-three acre site that was landscaped and terraced
for Sauer's vineyards. This acreage has dwindled to four and the only remains
of the landscaping are the fish pond and fountain in front of the house.

The main facade, which faces north is broken into three receding planes.
The central element and dominating feature of this facade is the four story tower.
The main entrance has been placed at the base of this tower. The double, three
paneled doors are solid walnut and set in an elaborately carved arched stone frame.
There are two carved stone lions to either side of the door on the small landing
at the top of a short flight of stone steps. To either side of the tower bay on
the first story are two large segmental arched double-hung windows which extend
to the stone water table. The windows on the east side open out to a narrow balcony
with a delicate metal railing, while the windows to the west are sheltered by an
ornate wood veranda. A1l windows on the north, east and west facades with the
exception of those above the entablature in the tower have segmental arches with
similarly carved stone lintels. There are two windows each on the east and west
bays of the north facade and a window above the main doorway on the central bay.
There are narrow metal balconies at the base of the windows on the east and central
bays. A round window with a stone frame has been placed above the second story
windows on the east bay where the entablature breaks and forms an open gable.

There are two small double-hung windows on the third story of the tower with
stone segmental arches with keystones joined by a stone string course on three
facades of the tower. Long thin round-Headed windows with keystones are joined
by a stone string course formed by the impost on all the faces of the fourth story
of the tower. The tower has a flat roof with an elaborate entablature which matches
that of the main house and has coupled brackets on each corner. Originally there
was metal cresting around the ridge of the tower. '

An L-shaped wood veranda extends around the southeast corner of the east
facade. There is a door opening out to this veranda on the south corner of the
east facade. A window has been placed above this doorway on the second story,
and to the north of the veranda there are two windows on each story. Two single,
evenly spaced brick chimneys rise above the entablature.

On the west facade there is one centered window on each story. There are
two windows with 1ight wells below the water table. Two single, evenly spaced
chimneys rise above the entablature with a small gabled dormer centered between
them.

The south facade has been treated with less detail than the rest of the
building. Stone is limited to the window sills, and the windows have brick
segmental arches. There are three one story extensions from this facade; a
brick one with a hip roof that appears to be original, and two later wood frame
additions. There is a small one story wood veranda on the west end of the facade.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Sauer Castle was erected around 1871 for Anton Phillip Sauer, a German
immigrant who first came to Kansas City in the 1860's.

Sauer was born March 10, 1826, at Essen in Germany. As a young man he
went to Australia to seek his fortune as a merchant. Success eluded him and
in 1853 he arrived in New York City. There he worked in a tannery, married
and had five children. After his wife died and he also developed health problems,
he moved west. For a time he engaged in the freighting business in the Rocky
Mountain region. He then settled in Kansas City, apparently around 1867.
According to some reports, he established a tannery but soon sold it. He sub-
sequently had a number of other business interests and properties. In 1870
the city directory listed him as an owner of the Crider-Sauer Grocers and as
president of the German Savings Association. He also had a seed importing
business.

In 1868 he married a widow, also a .German immigrant, with two children.
His wife's brother-in-law was in the real estate business and after much
searching he finally located a 63 acre tract of land that Sauer considered
acceptable for the new home he intended to build. The land was located high
on a bluff overlooking the Kansas river and its valley from the south. It
was reportedly in 1871 that he bought the property and began planning its
development. According to family traditions the first step was the construction
of a large barn to house construction materials and a barracks-l1ike building
in which the workers would Tive. Many craftsmen were brought from St. Louis
and elsewhere to work on the project. Supposedly all materials but the foundation
stones were shipped from St. Louis. Marble for the mantels came from Italy,
Vermont and Kentucky. The house is believed to have been finished in November,
1872. One cost estimate was $20,000. Sauer spent an even greater sum on the
development of the grounds, which included a greenhouse, wine cellar, milkhouse,
smokehouse, carriage house and stable. A large vineyard was planted and the
yard was beautifully landscaped with rock terraces and a large fountain.

Sauer and his wife had five daughters, four of whom survived him. Their
house was noted as the cultural and social center of the area. Sauer was in
poor health most of the time and died of tuberculosis at his home August 16,
1879. His widow continued to 1ive there until her death in 1921 and the property
remained in the family until 1950. Much of the surrounding acreage was sold
off during the years and used for residential development.

It is not known exactly why the house came to be called Sauer Castle, but
that name has been used for generations. For the place and the time it was
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constructed, Sauer's house was indeed a castle. It stands as a legacy of Anton
Sauer, a German immigrant who struck it rich by virtue of hard work and wise
management.

The Sauer Castle was perhaps the finest example of the Italian Villa style
constructed in the Kansas City, Kansas area and gains added importance in being
one of the few remaining buildings of its era. The richness of the materials
and the care in assembly add distinction and still preserve a sense of grandeur
about the house.
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